
West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

September 10, 2018 

 

Present: Win Johnson, Matt Kantola, Brett Myers, Mike Spackman, Martha Harrison, Michael 

Bell, Tom Kenyon, Jennifer Waite (National Park Service), Cathy Hoyt (Windsor on Air) 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Win Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.  

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – proposed tree work, Town Hall window washing, 

request for endorsement of Community Forest Program (CFP) letter 

3) Announcements/Public Comment – None 

4) Town Clerk’s Orders – Matt moved to sign orders. Brett seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  

5) Event application by VT Academy and Ascutney Outdoors for a Mountain Bike Race on 

Wednesday, October 17th from Noon until 6:00 PM at the Ski Tow Road parking lot and on 

the bike trails – Michael Bell was present on behalf of the event and confirmed that there will 

be no alcohol or fires. There will be 150 participants. Michael said the racers will use the ski 

bridge and the slope side trails so they do not need traffic control. Win asked Mike 

Spackman if he can have the crosswalk established before the race. Matt said he was present 

at the event last year and thought everything ran very smoothly. Michael said STAB (Sport 

Trails of Ascutney Basin) just advises VT Academy on the course set up and the academy 

does the rest. Matt asked if the AO Center bathroom will be available. Michael said he’s not 

sure; last year STAB rented a port-a-john for the event. Brett move to approve the 

application by VT Academy and Ascutney Outdoors for a Mountain Bike Race on 

Wednesday, October 17th from Noon until 6:00 PM. Matt seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  

6) Consider proposal to place bench on town property (near warming hut) – Jennifer Waite was 

present to explain the proposal, which will eventually include an interpretive nature trail with 

signage. The project includes ecological, cultural, historic and artistic components. Jennifer 

shared the design of the proposed five-sided bench with the Selectboard. Ultimately, Jennifer 

said, they would like to have a topographic model of Mt. Ascutney in the middle of the 

bench. Win asked if the Hotel has been involved in the planning. Jennifer said yes and 

explained the Hotel’s interest in having another amenity that encourages guests to explore the 

area. Win asked about the time frame for the bench installation. Jennifer said she hopes it can 

be done in late fall. Win asked if the bench will be movable. Jennifer said it won’t be easy to 

move but it will be possible to move. Win encouraged Jennifer to move forward with 

fundraising for the three-dimensional topographic model of Mt. Ascutney and suggested that 

the project organizers have a table at the Ascutney Outdoors Center Grand Opening, 

provided AO would allow that. Jennifer asked Mike where he plows. Mike said he doesn’t 

plow any further in than the fire hydrant. Brett moved to permit the placement of a bench 

on town property adjacent to the tubing lift area. Matt seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  

7) Report on meeting with members of the Legislative Commission on Act 250 – Win said he 

and several other local residents had raised some concerns about the Act 250 process, which 

they expressed in a letter to the legislative commission charged with examining and reporting 

on the Act. Win also reached out to Senator Dick McCormack, who is on the commission, 



and asked him if he would like to hear more about their concerns. Dick accepted the 

invitation and, along with Senator Alice Nitka, met with Win, Steve Crihfield, Michael Bell, 

Glenn Seward and others for a couple of hours. Win said he doesn’t know what, if anything, 

will come from the meeting. The commission will submit their report by the end of the year 

but it’s up to the legislature to act on the findings. Win said he and the others offered to meet 

with the commission if they would like to hear more. Win noted some of the Act 250 

requirements that don’t make any sense, such as needing a permit to mow a trail in Mile 

Long Field, which gets hayed twice a year. Michael thanked Win for organizing the meeting.  

8) Consider initiating proceedings to discontinue the existing Legal Trail on the Johannensen 

property (parcel #8-29) – Win said items 8, 9 and 10 have to do with abandoning the existing 

town trail right-of-way that runs close to the Johannensen house and creating a new right-of-

way that runs along the western side of the property. Win noted that the original plan was for 

Renee Johannensen to grant West Windsor and Hartland an easement but Hartland wanted to 

establish a new Legal Trail prior to abandoning the existing Legal Trail. Win said 

Conservation Commission Chair Ted Siegler, who was initially a proponent of an easement, 

came away from a meeting with Hartland feeling that a Legal Trail would be a better 

approach. Win said West Windsor would be abandoning a three-rod right-of-way and 

establishing a two-rod right-of-way. Win said the process is very formal and has to be 

followed carefully. Win described the process and said tonight we are just considering 

initiating the proceedings. Win noted that abutting property owners, GMHA, and the 

Commissioner of Forests, Parks & Recreation will have a voice in the proceedings. Jennifer 

said she thinks the Commissioner’s interest is in making sure that access to important public 

lands is not lost. Martha said she spoke with Becca Washburn today and Becca basically said 

the same thing; they just want to ensure that access to public lands is not lost. Win said it 

would be helpful to have something in writing. Martha said Becca forwarded the information 

to the Department staff in our region so, hopefully, we’ll get something from them. Matt 

asked if Renee understands the difference between an easement and a Legal Trail. Martha 

said she was not involved in the decision to go with a Legal Trail, rather than an easement, so 

she doesn’t know what has been communicated to Renee. Win said he will talk with Ted and 

ensure that someone reaches out to Renee and makes sure that she understands all of this. 

Matt moved to initiate proceedings to discontinue the existing Legal Trail on the 

Johannensen property (parcel #8-29). Brett seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

9) Consider initiating proceedings to lay out a new Legal Trail along the western border of the 

Johannensen property (parcel #8-29) off Kings Highway, and following the course of an 

existing recreation path – Brett moved to initiate proceedings to lay out a new Legal Trail 

along the western border of the Johannensen property (parcel #8-29) off Kings 

Highway, and following the course of an existing recreation path. Matt seconded the 

motion, which passed unanimously.  

10) Discuss possible dates and times to inspect the sites of the existing and proposed Legal Trails 

and to hear interested persons – Win said there will be four site visits; two in Hartland and 

two in West Windsor and we’re trying to coordinate our schedule with theirs. Win said we 

need to give 30-day’s notice and we’re starting to lose light in late October, so we should 

probably start at 4:00 or 4:30 PM. Martha said Renee is available on October 29th and 30th. 

The Selectboard agreed that their first choice would be to meet on one of those dates and 

their last choice would be to meet on October 22nd when they already have another meeting 



scheduled. Martha will consult with Hartland Town Manager Dave Ormiston tomorrow and 

see if there’s a day when both boards are available.  

11) Highway – Foreman’s report: Mike said they’re continuing to work on mowing, and fall 

scraping is more than half done. The hydro seeder has been repaired. Mike said he can’t 

attend the next Selectboard meeting. Win asked Mike to have Erik, or one of the other 

highway employees, attend and provide a report. Mike said he does have concerns about the 

VT Overland Bike Race, which is scheduled for discussion on September 24th. Win asked 

Mike to share his concerns with whoever is going to report on his behalf. The Selectboard 

considered rescheduling the Bike Race discussion but agreed to keep it on the September 24th 

agenda if Erik and the Police Chief are able to attend. Grants-in-Aid project: Mike said 

there’s grant money left after the Coon Club Road work so he’d like to do some work on 

Cemetery Road. Meeting: Mike said he’s meeting with Jim Ryan on Thursday at 9:00 AM so 

Jim has a better understanding of what we’re dealing with down here. Win offered to attend. 

Mike said it wouldn’t hurt. Trainings: Mike said there’s a training on Wednesday in 

Dummerston and another training on September 25th and 26th. Flats: Matt asked about the 

work being done on the flats. Mike said Dan Lesnick is working on a culvert on private 

property and is stabilizing the stream bank. Matt asked if he got a stream alteration permit. 

Mike said yes. Bible Hill culvert update: Win said the project is starting a week from today.  

12) Utilities – Designate Authorized Representative & Alternate Authorized Representative for 

DWSRF and CWSRF loan applications and related water & sewer projects: Brett moved to 

appoint Win as the Authorized Representative for the CWSRF and DWSRF loan 

applications and related projects. Matt seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously. Brett moved to appoint Martha as the Alternate Authorized 

Representative for the CWSRF and DWSRF loan applications and related projects. 

Matt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Authorize filing CWSRF planning 

loan application: Win said this loan is to do the planning for the work that needs to be done 

on the sewer collection system that serves the resort area. Matt moved to sign the CWSRF 

planning loan application. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

Consider signing Engineering Services Agreement with Aldrich + Elliott: Win said this 

agreement is a contract with A+E to do the planning that the CWSRF loan is going to fund. 

Brett moved to sign the Engineering Services Agreement with A+E to begin planning 

for the CWSRF project. Matt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Sewer 

& Water System update: Win said Cathy is working on turning off water for delinquent 

users, which is complicated by the fact that some of the curb stops serve more than one 

household. Martha said there was a broken manhole cover that the paving company agreed to 

repair. Matt said some of the manhole covers and stormwater drains are higher than the 

pavement and asked if that will be addressed when they do the second coat. Matt said there’s 

water running down Laura Deschamps driveway. Martha said she gave Laura the 

contractor’s phone number so she can contact him directly.  

13) August Police Report – Win noted a significant number of 911 hang-ups at the Hotel. Tom 

said people are driving faster since the roads have been paved and suggested additional 

police monitoring. Win noted that we’re going to have a radar speed sign soon. Tree across 

road: In response to complaints that “the Windsor Police aren’t out here,” Mike said he got a 

call from the Windsor Police at 1:30 AM that the Brownsville-Hartland Road was blocked by 

a tree.  



14) Approve Minutes – Win said the August 27th meeting notes should just be an addendum to 

the September 4th minutes. Brett moved to approve the September 4th minutes. Matt 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   

15) Other Business – Community Forest Program (CFP) Letter of Support: Win said the town 

has been asked to endorse federal funding for the CFP, which is one of the funding sources 

that the Trust for Public Lands applied to for funds with which to purchase the ski area 

property. Matt moved to endorse the funding request. Brett seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously. Tree Warden’s request: Tom said Rice is coming at the end of 

September to remove several trees on the Brownsville-Hartland Road. Brett said, if you’re 

heading north, near the little brick house across from Cemetery Road, there’s a tree that 

blocks the driver’s ability to see oncoming traffic. Tom agreed to check it out. Tom said he’s 

not going to use all the money in the tree removal budget so he’d like to use the leftover 

funds to have the windows in the Town Hall washed. There was no objection from the 

Selectboard.   

16) Adjourn – Matt moved to adjourn at 7:39 PM. Brett seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.   
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 


